
CITY OF BAY MINETTE 
PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
AGENDA  

June 11, 2020 
Regular Meeting  

8:00 a.m. 
City Hall Conference Room  

301 D’Olive Street, Bay Minette 
 

1. Call to Order 

2.   Invocation and Pledge 

3.      Approval of Minutes for the March 12, 2020 Regular Meeting   

4. Confirm and ratify the cancellation of the April 16th and May 14th Regular Meetings due 
to COVID-19 

5. Old Business 

 Discussion - Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendments  

     Section 7.12.2.1 – Private wells and septic systems  ** Proposed Revision 

     Section 8.7.2 – Home Occupations  ** Proposed Revision 

     Section 9.8 Mobile Vendors  ** Proposed Addition 

  7. New Business 

a.) Election of Vice-Chair 

b.) AS-2007 – Switzer Family Exempt Subdivision 

Request: Proposed family exempt subdivision request to divide a 1.86-acre lot from a 
32.46-acre lot 

Location: The subject property is located on Pine Grove Road Ext South 

c.) AS-2008 – Ballard Family Exempt Subdivision 

Request: Proposed family exempt subdivision request to divide a 2-acre lot from a 5-acre 
lot 

Location: The subject property is located at 16311 Old Brady Road 

d.) SE-2001 – AT&T Special Exception  

Request: Special Exception request for the construction of a new wireless 
telecommunications facility  

Location: The subject property is located on Newport Parkway 

  6. Reports 

a.) Mayor/Council 

b.) Attorney 

c.) Commissioner’s Comments 

d.) Planning Staff 

7. Adjournment  



 
 
 
 
 

 

Bay Minette Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Minutes March 12, 2020                                                         Monthly Meeting No. 3 
 

The Bay Minette Planning Commission met in Regular Session on Thursday, March 12, 2020. 
The meeting was called to order at 8:02 a.m., by Chairman, Todd Stewart, in the Conference 
Room located in Bay Minette City Hall, in Bay Minette, Alabama; this being the proper place, 

date and hour as advertised to hold such meeting.  
 

IN ATTENDANCE  At 8:02 a.m. the following members were present: 
 
Todd Stewart, Chairman 
Ed Pepperman, Vice‐Chairman  
Robert A. “Bob” Wills, Mayor  
Scotty Langham, Commission Member 
Jessica Davis, Commission Member 
Neal Covington, Commission Member 
   

Commission Members absent:   
 
John Biggs, Council Member 
Pat Robinson, Building Official 
 

      Commission Member(s) late: 
 

Wynter Crook, Commission Member 
 
      Other persons in regular attendance:   
      

Scotty Lewis, Attorney 
        Tammy Smith, City Administrator/Finance Director 
        Clair Dorough, City Planner 

Leslie Johnston, SARPC 
Jessica Peed, Planning Assistant 
Steven Stewart, Fire Inspector 

                 
GUESTS    Sonny Dobbins 
     
INVOCATION  Chairman Stewart gave the invocation, followed by the pledge.   
  
ITEM 3.  Approval of Minutes of the February 13, 2020 meeting.  Mayor Wills made a 

motion  to  approve  the minutes  as  written.    The motion  was  seconded  by 
Commission Member Langham and it was unanimously carried. 



 
 
 
 
 

 

      Wynter Crook joined the Planning Commission meeting at 8:05am.     
 

ITEM  4.               Old Business: 
   

 RA‐ 2001 ‐ Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment ‐ Public Hearing 

   Section 7.17 – Existing Covenants 

      Article XI – Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

      Section 14.4 – Establishment & Membership of the Board of Adjustment 

 
Chairman  Stewart  introduced  the Old  Business  pertaining  to  the  Proposed 
Zoning  Ordinance  Amendments  for  Existing  Covenants,  Planned  Unit 
Development  (PUD),  and  Establishment  &  Membership  of  the  Board  of 
Adjustment (BOA). Mrs. Dorough gave a brief statement of the line items that 
would  change  following  an  approved  amendment  change,  which  would 
include  the  clarification  for  existing  covenant  regulation  compliance, 
requirement  of  a  minimum  5  acres  for  a  Planned  Unit  Development,  and 
removing  the  self‐imposed  line  item  that  restricts  potential  BOA members 
from serving on other public boards or in other public positions.  
 
Chairman  Stewart  opened  the  Public Hearing  at  8:07am. He  asked  if  there 
were any comments or questions. There were none. Chairman Stewart closed 
the  Public  Hearing  at  8:08am.  Commission  Member  Pepperman  made  a 
motion  to  recommend  adoption  of  the  amendment  modifications  to  City 
Council.  Commission  Member  Langham  seconded,  and  was  unanimously 
carried. 
 

 
ITEM  5.     New Business: 
 

a.)   Z‐2001, Dobbins Property – Public Hearing 
 
Request: Re‐zoning of a lot from M‐2, General Industrial District to R‐3, Higher 
Density Single‐Family Residential District for a proposed residential subdivision 
of 3 lots. 
 
Location: The subject property is located at 11 Crosby Road 
 
Chairman Stewart asked Mrs. Dorough to explain the re‐zoning request for the 
Dobbins property that is located at 11 Crosby Road. Mrs. Dorough stated the 
re‐zoning request is to go from a current M‐2, General Industrial District to R‐
3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District, to develop the property for 



 
 
 
 
 

 

three single family homes.  She stated the property is located close to the old 
Crosby Mill, and the property on the east side of Crosby Road  is outside of 
municipal limits.   Mrs. Dorough also stated an R‐3 re‐zoning would be more 
consistent with the Future Land Use Map, instead of the current M‐2 zoning. 
Mrs. Dorough commented the next case on the agenda is a request for the 
same property to be subdivided into 3 lots. Chairman Stewart stated the Public 
Hearing  notices  for  cases  that  will  go  to  City  Council  will  now  be  run 
concurrently, and asked Mrs. Dorough  to explain  the  reasoning behind  this 
action.  Mrs. Dorough explained the change will allow the applications to be 
completed  in  a  more  efficient  and  cost‐effective  manner.  Applicants  will 
benefit  by  having  their  cases  resolved  in  a much  shorter  time  frame. Mrs. 
Dorough  also  stated  that  all  public  hearings  will  run  concurrently  but  the 
applicant still has the option to withdraw if they so choose. Scotty Lewis stated 
this  is  a  very  efficient  re‐zoning  process.    Chairman  Stewart  asked  Sonny 
Dobbins if he had any comments on his re‐zoning request.  Mr. Dobbins stated 
he  was  recently,  initially  denied  a  Certificate  of  Occupancy  (C/O)  due  to 
demolishing and rebuilding a residential home before inquiring about zoning.  
He also said he would not have torn down the home if he had known there 
was  a  potential  issue,  and  these  types  of  changes  should  be  addressed.  
Chairman Stewart remarked that Jim Crosby contacted him for assurance the 
re‐zoning would not affect him.   
 
Chairman Stewart opened the Public Hearing at 8:15am for the request of a 
re‐zoning of 11 Crosby Road from M‐2 General Industrial District to R‐3, Higher 
Density  Single  Family  Residential  District.    Chairman  Stewart  asked  if  there 
were any comments or questions. There were none.  Chairman Stewart closed 
the Public Hearing at 8:15am.  Jessica Davis made a motion to approve the re‐
zoning  request.    Commission  Member  Pepperman  seconded,  and  was 
unanimously carried.   
 
 
b.) AS‐2001, Dobbins Property 
 
Request: Proposed residential subdivision of 3 lots 
 
Location: The subject property is located at 11 Crosby Road 
 
Chairman  Stewart  introduced  the  request  for  consideration  of  the  subject 
property to be subdivided into 3 parcels.  Mrs. Dorough explained the request 
meets the requirements of an Exempt Subdivision, including fronting a public 
road, and briefly  summarized  the  information  located on  the  staff  analysis.  
Chairman Stewart stated the subdivision request meets the requirements for 
an exempt subdivision. He also stated there is Fire Code requirement that a 
fire hydrant must be within 600 ft. of the residential home, and Mr. Dobbins 
would  need  to  consider  that  requirement  as  he  moves  forward  with  the 



 
 
 
 
 

 

process, as the third lot is more than 600 ft. from the existing fire hydrant.  Mr. 
Dobbins  acknowledged  he  understood,  with  no  comments  or  questions 
expressed.  Mrs. Dorough stated the subdivision request is contingent upon a 
successful re‐zoning from M‐2 to R‐3, as dictated in the previous New Business 
Item “a”.  Chairman Stewart asked the commission if there were any questions 
or comments. None were made.  Mayor Wills made a motion to approve the 
request to subdivide the lot into 3 parcels, pending a successful re‐zoning of 
the property.  Commission Member Pepperman seconded the motion, and it 
was unanimously carried.   
 

     
ITEM  6.   Reports: 
 

A. Mayor/Council Report  

 Mayor Wills stated the softball tournament at the new sports complex that 
was held the previous weekend went well and the complex is starting to 
see some good activity. A ladies’ softball tournament will also be held the 
following Saturday.  Mayor Wills also stated that he and Tammy Smith will 
be meeting with the Baldwin County Commission next week to negotiate 
prices on the City’s office building that houses the Police Department and 
Senior Center. There will also be an environmental analysis done soon for 
the  Brownfield  grant  on  the  Ballard  property.    Mayor Wills  added  the 
renovations on  the  second  floor of City Hall  have  started.    Commission 
Member Pepperman  inquired about the Ballard property that  is  located 
next to City Hall.  Mayor Wills stated the property is being considered for 
the Police Department, and there will be more discussions on the future 
for the “Justice Center”, as it being called now. Mayor Wills stated since 
Chief Tolbert took over as the City Police Chief, the cases have multiplied 
and the magistrate needs a more productive and open working space, so 
he  will  also  be  moving  upstairs  in  City  Hall  once  the  renovations  are 
completed.    They  are  also  looking  into  some  options  for  the  Senior 
Program and have sought out some potential locations such as the school 
auditorium or library, but neither were suitable.   

 
Commission  Member  Pepperman  stated  the  new  car  wash  is  up  and 
running.   Both Mayor Wills and Tammy Smith commented the car wash 
was a nice establishment. 
 
 

B. Attorney 

 None 
 
Mayor  Wills  inquired  about  a  comment  Sonny  Dobbins  made  during  the 
discussion regarding his re‐zoning request.  Mrs. Dorough explained there was 
a residential home that was torn down and rebuilt in an area not zoned for a 



 
 
 
 
 

 

residential home. The structure was rebuilt as a legal nonconforming use, and 
received a CO, but there was confusion on the nonconforming status at the 
time the owner was closing on the home.  Mayor Wills stated he was under 
the  impression a residential home could be built  in a commercial area, and 
Mrs. Dorough explained that is only with Planning Commission approval. She 
also stated that per the current Zoning Ordinances, residential homes aren’t 
allowed in M‐1, Light Industrial District or M‐2, General Industrial District. This 
was  discussed  during  the  last  planning  commission meeting  to  allow  them 
through the special exception process so that when a residential home was 
rebuilt  in  a  nonresidential  zoning  area,  it  would  not  be  stuck  with  a  non‐
conformity.  Mayor Wills stated that Mike Phillips brought up the issue of “not 
knowing” when changes are happening, and questioned if it would be a good 
idea to notify contractors and subcontractors of any update(s) as the become 
the  new  standard  procedure.  Mrs.  Dorough  stated  it  is  essentially  the 
contractor’s responsibility to do their due diligence in obtaining all information 
prior to any work commencing.  She also stated there will be some corrected 
versions  of  regulations  and  updated  ordinance  amendments  that  will  be 
included on the City of Bay Minette website, with availability to zoning maps 
as well.  Chairman Stewart suggested all potential builders meeting with the 
City  Planner  prior  to  their  building  process,  in  order  to  avoid  potential 
problems such as needing to re‐zone, or having a non‐conforming issue.  Mrs. 
Dorough  stated  it  could  be  advertised  through  the  City  Newsletter,  and 
updated  on  the  City  of  Bay  Minette  Facebook  and  webpages,  as  well.  
Chairman  Stewart  commented  the  City  of  Daphne  has  a  pre‐development 
meeting on bigger projects prior  to any permits being  issued,  to help avoid 
problems.    Mrs.  Dorough  stated  the  City  has  an  unofficial,  similar  pre‐
development procedure, but it could be made an official requirement prior to 
application. 

 
C. Commissioner 

 None 
 

D. Planning Staff 
 Mrs.  Dorough  stated  the  Planning  and  Building  Department  have  been 

getting many calls regarding the old Winn Dixie building that is currently 
being demolished.  She added there are no replacement use plans, as of 
now.  She also stated there are no tenant replacement plans going into the 
Monterrey’s restaurant at this time.  Mayor Wills inquired if the Popeyes 
franchise  was  still  coming  to  the  area.    Mrs.  Dorough  answered  that 
Popeyes  is  fairly  locked  in,  but  she  doesn’t want  to  publicize  certainty, 
because they have not secured a co‐franchise yet and are still searching.   

 
Leslie  Johnston  included  that  the  Coastal  Zone  Management  Planning 
Grant has a deadline of March 27th, and it is an annual grant.  

 



 
 
 
 
 

 

ITEM 8.  With no further business Chairman Stewart adjourned the meeting at 8:40 am. 
                                                                                                                                                                       
         
 
 
 
 

            DONE THIS THE 12TH DAY of MARCH 2020 
 

 
 
            _________________________________________________________ 

Todd Stewart, Chairman 
         

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Jessica Peed, Planning Assistant 



 

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Analysis 
 

Case No. AS‐2007  
Robert Gordon Switzer Property 

Administrative Subdivision Request 
June 11, 2020 

 

Subject Property Information 

 
Physical Address:  Pine Grove Road Ext. South 
Parcel Number:   05‐23‐07‐26‐0‐000‐055.000 
Existing Zoning:  N/A ‐ ETJ  
Existing Land Use:  Single‐family residential 
Proposed Land Use:  Single Family Residential 
Acreage:  32.46± acres  
 
 

  Adjacent Land Use  Adjacent Zoning 

North  Undeveloped/Timberland   Outside Municipal Limits 

South  Residential  Outside Municipal Limits 

East  Undeveloped/Timberland   Outside Municipal Limits 

West  Residential  Outside Municipal Limits 

 

Summary 

 
The  subject  property,  which  consists  of  approximately  32.46±  acres,  is  within  the  city’s  Extraterritorial 
jurisdiction and unzoned. The request is to subdivide approximately 1.86± acres from the southwest corner of 
the larger parcel, for the purpose of a family division. The proposed division will result in a 1.86± acre parcel and 
a  30.6±  acre  parcel.  The Certification  for  Family  Subdivisions  has  been  submitted  and  the  intended  for  the 
applicant’s sister, a qualified immediate family member. 
 
The request meets the requirements for item (c) of Section 8.1 relating to Exempt Subdivisions. 
 

Administrative Subdivision Review Criteria 

 
The following Administrative Subdivision types are found in Section 8 of the Subdivision Regulations of the City 
of Bay Minette.  
 

a) The resubdivision of land into six (6) or less lots, tracts, or parcels where each of the lots, tracts, or 
parcels established by the resubdivision fronts on an existing public road. 

 

 

City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

Applicant:   Robert Gordon Switzer 
  16805 Pine Grove Road Ext. S. 
  Bay Minette, AL 36507 
Owner:  Same 
 



 
b) Subdivision wherein the size of each and every resulting lot equals or exceeds ten (10) acres including 

existing public rights‐of‐way. Each parcel shall have frontage on publicly maintained road. 
 

c) The subdivision of property for the limited purpose of sale, deed or transfer of land by the owner to a 
person or persons, all of whom are members of the owner's immediate family. Each parcel which is 
subdivided pursuant to this subparagraph shall have deeded ingress/egress and utility access or 
easement that runs with the land of not less than 30 feet in width. A qualifying division hereunder is 
limited to a division among the following designated legally related immediate family members: 
spouse, children, siblings, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, nieces, nephews, or step‐related 
individuals of the same status. 

 

In addition to the requirements set forth above, the following requirements must be satisfied:  
 

a) Each lot created hereunder shall comply with all minimum lot size and setback requirements otherwise 
specified by the provisions herein or by provisions of the Zoning Ordinance;  
 

b) Maintenance of any easements, together with all improvements thereto, shall be the responsibility of 
all parties to which it is granted by (1) written agreement  or (2) deed reference, and shall be noted on a 
recorded certified plat. Neither the City nor the County shall be responsible for any easement or 
improvements thereto.  
 

Planning Commission Action 

 
For exempt subdivisions, no public hearing shall be required, but shall be subject to review and approval of the 
Planning Commission for compliance with the requirements contained in Section 8. Upon consideration and 
approval by the Planning Commission, the Chairman shall be authorized to sign the plat on behalf of the 
Planning Commission. 
 
The Planning Commission has the option to: 

 Approve the subdivision with conditions and authorize the Chairman to sign the plat 
 Deny the subdivision, with stated factors for the denial 

 
Certified Plat: The property owner shall be responsible for the preparation of a certified plat, in form as approved by the 

Planning Commission, to be filed in the Baldwin County Probate records upon receiving approval hereunder. In the 

event the property to be divided is an existing lot (or lots) of record in a recorded subdivision, the applicant shall be 

required to cause a certified plat, in form as approved by the Planning Commission, to be recorded in the Baldwin 

County Probate records upon receiving an exemption hereunder. 

Limitation on resubmittal. Any property included as part of an exempt or administrative subdivision shall not be 

eligible for consideration for further subdivision as an exempt or administrative subdivision for a period of one (1) year 

from the date of the last exempt or administrative subdivision. 



CA
RL

EE
 LN

PINE GROVE RD EXT S

PINE GROVE RD EXT N

RIDGE LINE DR

STYRON LN

/

0 0.250.125
Miles

Subject Property

Legend
Parcels

BAY MINETTE ZONING
RA
R1
R2
R3
R4
R5
B1
B2
B2H
M1
M2
City Limits
ETJ
County Asphalt
County Gravel/Dirt



CA
RL

EE
 LN

PINE GROVE RD EXT S

Parcels
Roads

±

0 320 640160
Feet

Subject Property



PINE GROVE RD EXT S
Parcels
Roads

±

0 75 15037.5
Feet

Subject Property



36

25

26
35

P.O.C.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

BA

A
M

A

L

A

H

L

D

E.

D

I

E

D

A

V

I

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

LEGEND:

Civil 
(251) 990-6566

880 HOLCOMB BLVD
FAIRHOPE, AL 36532

Engineering
& Surveying

PROJ MGR

OF

SHEET

FILE

PROJECT

SCALE

DED

11

SWITZER.DWG

20200692

1" = 100'

CHKD. DED

DRAWN SGG

BOUNDARY SURVEY

ROBERT SWITZER

N

0 50 100 200

100 SCALE

PI
N

E 
GR

O
VE

 R
D.

 E
XT

. S
  8

0'
 R

/W

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (PARCEL 1)

PARCEL 1

30.60 AC ±

PARCEL 2

1.86 AC ±

P.O.B. PARCEL 1

P.O.B. PARCEL 2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (PARCEL 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°02'57"W 654.80' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°49'42"E 453.04' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°09'06"E 1194.55' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°02'57"E 1436.07' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°02'34"W 783.07' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°14'26"W 1188.84' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
228.95'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°30'45"W 276.63' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°11'18"W 1194.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°06'52"W 1436.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°02'51"E 784.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°39'10"E 53.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°44'20"W 53.10' (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°10'05"E 653.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°42'03"W 453.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°15'54"E 1188.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°28'57"W 276.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(A&R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
228.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COTTON SPINDLE FD. IN ASPHALT AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 3 EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°11'18"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Calculated Section Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY STATE THAT ALL PARTS OF THIS SURVEY AND DRAWING HAVE BEEN COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR SURVEYING IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION, AND BELIEF. ______________________________________ DAVID E DIEHL AL. P.L.S. NO. 26014   DATE SURVEY NOT VALID WITHOUT ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.26014

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THERE MAY BE RECORDED OR UNRECORDED DEEDS, EASEMENTS, THERE MAY BE RECORDED OR UNRECORDED DEEDS, EASEMENTS, RIGHT-OF-WAYS, OR OTHER INSTRUMENTS WHICH COULD AFFECT THE BOUNDARIES OF SAID PROPERTIES. 2. THERE WAS NO ATTEMPT TO DETERMINE THE EXISTENCE, LOCATION, OR EXTENT THERE WAS NO ATTEMPT TO DETERMINE THE EXISTENCE, LOCATION, OR EXTENT OF ANY SUB-SURFACE FEATURES. 3. THE LINES REPRESENTING THE CENTERLINE AND RIGHT-OF-WAYS OF THE THE LINES REPRESENTING THE CENTERLINE AND RIGHT-OF-WAYS OF THE STREETS ARE SHOWN FOR VISUAL PURPOSES ONLY AND WERE NOT SURVEYED UNLESS RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENTATION IS ALSO SHOWN. 4. SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED IN APRIL 2020, AND IS RECORDED IN AN ELECTRONIC SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED IN APRIL 2020, AND IS RECORDED IN AN ELECTRONIC APRIL 2020, AND IS RECORDED IN AN ELECTRONIC , AND IS RECORDED IN AN ELECTRONIC FIELD BOOK. 5. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON WERE "COMPUTED" FROM ACTUAL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON WERE "COMPUTED" FROM ACTUAL FIELD TRAVERSES, AND ARE BASED ON STATE PLANE GRID, ALABAMA WEST ZONE USING GPS OBSERVATIONS. 6. NO TITLE SEARCH OR REPORT WAS PROVIDED FOR THIS SURVEY. NO TITLE SEARCH OR REPORT WAS PROVIDED FOR THIS SURVEY. 7. THIS SURVEY HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS THIS SURVEY HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR SURVEYING IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA, EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= REBAR FOUND (NO CAP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CAPPED REBAR SET (SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(A & R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ACTUAL & RECORD BEARING/DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
= WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
= CRIMP TOP IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
= OPEN END PIPE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OEPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= RECORD BEARING/DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SE CIVIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OEPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"OEPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"RBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"CTIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENCE AT A COTTON SPINDLE IN THE ASPHALT AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 3 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, AND RUN THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.18 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL) ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PINE GROVE ROAD EXTENSION SOUTH FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 01 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1194.55 FEET TO A OPEN END PIPE; THENCE RUN NORTH 01 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1436.07 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 453.04 FEET TO A REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 653.58 FEET TO A CRIMPED TOP IRON; THENCE RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 53.44 FEET TO A REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 784.01 FEET TO A REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 276.44 FEET TO A REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 850.85 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN  NORTH 88 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 184.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 68.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN NORTH 87 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.68 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 277.17 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL) ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PINE GROVE ROAD EXTENSION SOUTH; THENCE RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF WAY, A DISTANCE OF 424.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 30.60 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°15'54"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
277.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°45'52"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°07'16"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°28'12"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
338.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
850.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05-23-07-26-0-000-054.000 SWITZER, ROBERT G ETUX DOROTHY B 16805 PINE GROVE RD EXT S BAY MINETTE, AL 36507

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-23-07-26-0-000-052.000 QUINLEY, PAUL T ETUX QUINLEY, MARGARET L P O BOX 456 BAY MINETTE, AL 36507

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-23-07-25-0-000-019.000 SEVEN STATES TIMBERLANDS L L C 3158 GATEWAY LN CANTONMENT, FL 32533

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05-23-07-35-0-000-002.004 AUSTIN RESOURCES INC P O BOX 701 MANDEVILLE, LA 70470

AutoCAD SHX Text
05-23-07-35-0-000-002.002 WALLACE, ALFRED E 16880 PINE GROVE RD EXT S BAY MINETTE, AL 36507

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05-23-07-35-0-000-002.001 WALLACE, DONALD GLEN ETUX NANCY LAURA 16920 PINE GROVE RD EXT BAY MINETTE, AL 36507

AutoCAD SHX Text
 05-23-07-35-0-000-001.000 FLOWERS, JOSEPH W ETAL FLOWERS, JESSICA 97 DEATON RD LACEYS SPRING, AL 35754

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENCE AT A COTTON SPINDLE IN THE ASPHALT AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 3 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, AND RUN THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.18 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL) ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PINE GROVE ROAD EXTENSION SOUTH; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 19 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF WAY, A DISTANCE OF 424.87 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR FOR POINT OF BEGINNING;THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, SOUTH 89 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 19 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 249.95 FEET TO A REBAR; THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF WAY RUN NORTH 01 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 338.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 184.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 68.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN NORTH 87 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 65.68 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR (SE CIVIL); THENCE RUN SOUTH 01 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 54 SECONDS, A DISTANCE OF 277.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 1.86 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°58'19"W  249.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°15'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°58'19"E 424.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°58'19"W 424.87'







 

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Analysis 
 

Case No. AS‐2008  
Ronald Ballard Property 

Administrative Subdivision Request 
June 11, 2020 

 

Subject Property Information 

 
Physical Address:  16311 Old Brady Road 
Parcel Number:   05‐23‐06‐14‐0‐000‐020.007 
Existing Zoning:  N/A ‐ ETJ  
Existing Land Use:  Single‐family residential 
Proposed Land Use:  Single Family Residential 
Acreage:  5± acres  
 
 

  Adjacent Land Use  Adjacent Zoning 

North  Residential  Outside Municipal Limits 

South  Residential  R‐2, Medium Density Residential 

East  Residential  Outside Municipal Limits 

West  Residential  Outside Municipal Limits 

 

Summary 

 
The subject property, which consists of approximately 5± acres, is within the city’s Extraterritorial jurisdiction 
and unzoned. The request is to subdivide approximately 2± acres from the west side the parcel, for the purpose 
of a family division. The proposed division will result in a 2± acre parcel and a 3.0± acre parcel. The applicant 
had  submitted  a  complete  Exempt  Subdivision  application  to  Baldwin  County  last  month  that  included  a  
certification stating the division is intended for the applicant’s son, a qualified immediate family member. 
 
The request meets the requirements for item (c) of Section 8.1 relating to Exempt Subdivisions. 
 

Administrative Subdivision Review Criteria 

 
The following Administrative Subdivision types are found in Section 8 of the Subdivision Regulations of the City 
of Bay Minette.  
 

a) The resubdivision of land into six (6) or less lots, tracts, or parcels where each of the lots, tracts, or 
parcels established by the resubdivision fronts on an existing public road. 

 

 

City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

Applicant:   Ronald Ballard 
  16311 Old Brady Road 
  Bay Minette, AL 36507 
Owner:  Same 
 



 
b) Subdivision wherein the size of each and every resulting lot equals or exceeds ten (10) acres including 

existing public rights‐of‐way. Each parcel shall have frontage on publicly maintained road. 
 

c) The subdivision of property for the limited purpose of sale, deed or transfer of land by the owner to a 
person or persons, all of whom are members of the owner's immediate family. Each parcel which is 
subdivided pursuant to this subparagraph shall have deeded ingress/egress and utility access or 
easement that runs with the land of not less than 30 feet in width. A qualifying division hereunder is 
limited to a division among the following designated legally related immediate family members: 
spouse, children, siblings, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, nieces, nephews, or step‐related 
individuals of the same status. 

 

In addition to the requirements set forth above, the following requirements must be satisfied:  
 

a) Each lot created hereunder shall comply with all minimum lot size and setback requirements otherwise 
specified by the provisions herein or by provisions of the Zoning Ordinance;  
 

b) Maintenance of any easements, together with all improvements thereto, shall be the responsibility of 
all parties to which it is granted by (1) written agreement  or (2) deed reference, and shall be noted on a 
recorded certified plat. Neither the City nor the County shall be responsible for any easement or 
improvements thereto.  
 

Planning Commission Action 

 
For exempt subdivisions, no public hearing shall be required, but shall be subject to review and approval of the 
Planning Commission for compliance with the requirements contained in Section 8. Upon consideration and 
approval by the Planning Commission, the Chairman shall be authorized to sign the plat on behalf of the 
Planning Commission. 
 
The Planning Commission has the option to: 

 Approve the subdivision with conditions and authorize the Chairman to sign the plat 
 Deny the subdivision, with stated factors for the denial 

 
Certified Plat: The property owner shall be responsible for the preparation of a certified plat, in form as approved by the 

Planning Commission, to be filed in the Baldwin County Probate records upon receiving approval hereunder. In the 

event the property to be divided is an existing lot (or lots) of record in a recorded subdivision, the applicant shall be 

required to cause a certified plat, in form as approved by the Planning Commission, to be recorded in the Baldwin 

County Probate records upon receiving an exemption hereunder. 

Limitation on resubmittal. Any property included as part of an exempt or administrative subdivision shall not be 

eligible for consideration for further subdivision as an exempt or administrative subdivision for a period of one (1) year 

from the date of the last exempt or administrative subdivision. 

















Bay Minette

OLD BRADY RD

PIN
E G

RO
VE

 R
D

BRADY RD N

BRADY RD EXT

LIN
DA

 JO
NE

S 
RD

L B
OE

SC
HE

N 
RD

/

0 0.250.125
Miles

Subject Property

Legend
Parcels

BAY MINETTE ZONING
RA
R1
R2
R3
R4
R5
B1
B2
B2H
M1
M2
City Limits
ETJ
County Asphalt
County Gravel/Dirt



OLD BRADY RD
Parcels
Roads

±

0 150 30075
Feet

Subject Property



 

Applicant:  AT&T c/o Baker Donelson 
  420 20th Street North, Ste 1400 
  Birmingham, AL 35223 
Owner:  Bay Minette Land Co. 
  P.O. Box 340 
  Bay Minette, AL 36507 
 

City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

 
Planning Commission Staff Analysis

 
Case No. SE‐2001 

AT&T // Bay Minette Land Co. Property 
Special Exception Request for a New Wireless Telecommunications Tower on Newport Parkway  

June 11, 2020 
 

Subject Property Information 

 
Physical Location:  Newport Parkway           
Parcel Number:   05‐23‐02‐09‐4‐000‐135.001 
Current Zoning:  M‐2, General Industrial District 
Current Land Use:  Vacant/Undeveloped 
Proposed Land Use:  Wireless Telecommunication Tower 
Acreage:  1.05± acres 
 

  Adjacent Land Use  Adjacent Zoning 

North  Vacant/Undeveloped  M‐2, General Industrial District 

South  Commercial/Vacant  M‐2, General Industrial District 

East  Commercial/Vacant  M‐2, General Industrial District & R‐3, Higher Density Single Family 

West  Commercial/Vacant  M‐2, General Industrial District 

 

Summary 

 
The subject property, which consists of approximately 1.05± acres, is currently zoned M‐2, General Industrial 
District. The request is to construct a new wireless telecommunication tower on a vacant/undeveloped parcel 
on Newport  Parkway.  The  property  is  bisected  by Mannor Drive  and  the  facility  is  proposed  to  be  located 
southwest of Mannor Drive.  The  tower  is proposed  for an 80’x80’  leased area with  the actual  construction 
contained within a 65’x65’ area.  The facility is proposed to include a 180’ monopole telecommunications tower 
with a 10’ lightning rod for a total height of 190’ above ground. It will be designed for at least two additional 
tenants with the separation required for co‐locations. 
 
Per the Table of Permitted Uses, telecommunications towers and facilities are only allowed by Special Exception 
in M‐1 or M‐2 Industrial Districts. The applicant is requesting Site Plan approval be conducted concurrently with 
the Special Exception request. 

Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions  R‐A  R‐1  R‐2  R‐3  R‐4  R‐5  B‐1  B‐2  M‐1  M‐2

Telecommunications towers and facilities                  S  S 

 



 

Current Zoning District 

 
6.4.2  M‐2 General Industrial District. It is the intent of this district to provide opportunity for the location of 

industrial, manufacturing, processing, warehousing, or research and testing operations that, due to 

employment of heavy equipment or machinery or to the nature of the materials and processes employed, 

require special location and development safeguards to prevent pollution of the environment by noise, 

vibration, odors or other factors, and may also require extensive sites for storage and parking, may require 

extensive community facilities or generate heavy motor traffic. Access to major transportation facilities is 

usually needed. Locations should be in accordance with comprehensive plans and special review is required for 

some. 

Staff Analysis and Findings 

 
The following standards for reviewing special exception requests are found in Section 14.4 Establishment and 
Membership of the Board of Adjustment of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Bay Minette. The Board of 
Adjustment shall review requests against the criteria below and grant approval only upon the concurring vote 
of  four  Board members.  This  Special  Exception  application  is  being  considered  concurrently  with  Site  Plan 
Approval. The Planning Commission has  the  final decision on  the Site Plan approval but acts  in an advisory 
capacity only for the Special Exception.  
 
1.) Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan 
The subject property is designated as Industrial on the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive Plan, which 
is consistent with the current designation and proposed use. 
 
2.) Compliance with any other approved planning document  
On August  21,  2014,  the  Board  of  Adjustment  approved with  conditions,  a  special  exception  for  the  same 

applicant for a tower at 111 South Hoyle Avenue, in the southwest corner of the property (former Mannor Slacks 

facility).  The  Planning  Commission  reviewed  the  case  on  August  12,  2014  and  recommended  approval. 

According  to  the applicant,  the option expired, and the  tower was not constructed. The current proposal  is 

approximately 800 feet northwest of the originally approved tower.   

 

3.) Compliance with the standards, goals and intent of this ordinance 

The Zoning Ordinance was intended to promote the health, safety, convenience, order, prosperity, and general 
welfare of the residents; to lessen congestion in the street; to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 
to  provide  adequate  light  and  air;  to  prevent  the  overcrowding  of  land;  to  avoid  undue  concentration  of 
population;  to  facilitate  the  adequate  provision  of  transportation, water,  sewerage,  and  parks;  to  facilitate 
initiation of the comprehensive plan, and other public requirements. 
 
The  proposed  tower  meets  the  Zoning  Ordinance  Special  Provisions  written  specifically  for  Wireless 
Telecommunication Facilities. It also falls within the appropriate designation in the Future Land Use Map, which 
is  in  line  with  the  Comprehensive  Plan. While  not  directly  referenced  in  the  Zoning  Ordinance  intent,  the 
proposed increased capacity and coverage of wireless telecommunications could facilitate many of the goals 
the ordinance is intended to promote: health, safety, convenience, order, prosperity, safety from fire, panic and 
other dangers. 
 
 



 
4.) The character of the surrounding property, including any pending development activity 
The surrounding property is largely industrial with much of the area dominated by the railroad. The western 
edge of the parcel where the tower is proposed, sits at an intersection of railroad that connects the main line 
to  the  spur  servicing  multiple  industrial  uses  further  south.  This  intersection  divides  the  industrial  zoned 
property from the residentially zoned property. 
 

5.) Adequacy of public infrastructure to support the proposed development 
This proposed tower should have a nominal impact on public infrastructure. 
 

6.) Impacts on natural resources, including existing conditions and ongoing post‐development conditions 
No major impacts are expected. The property is surrounded by existing intense industrial uses and post‐
development conditions are anticipated to be minimal. 
 
7.) Compliance with other laws and regulations of the city 
The applicant has submitted a legally binding compliance letter stating that the facility “shall at all times be 
operated and maintained in compliance with all federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, including but not limited to those related to electrical powering limits and RF emissions.” 
 
8.) Compliance with other applicable laws and regulations of other jurisdictions 
 The applicant has submitted a legally binding compliance letter stating that the facility “shall at all times be 
operated and maintained in compliance with all federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, including but not limited to those related to electrical powering limits and RF emissions.” Other 
regulatory compliance assurances submitted include: Federal Communications Commission (FCC), Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA), American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), and American National Standards 
Institute (ANSI) Telecommunications Industry Association (TIA) telecommunication standards. 
 
9.) Impacts on adjacent property including noise, traffic, visible intrusions, potential physical impacts, and 
property values 
The adjacent property is largely industrial with much of the area dominated by the railroad. The two closest 
residentially zoned properties are vacant and separated from the tower by the railroad spur and a mature 
natural vegetative buffer. The tower will be painted in a neutral or blending color to reduce any visual 
obtrusiveness.  
 
10.) Impacts on the surrounding neighborhood including noise, traffic, visible intrusions, potential physical 
impacts, and property values 
The surrounding area is largely industrial in both zoning designation and use, with much of the area 
dominated by the railroad, the former Mannor Slacks facility and Plasmine facility. The closest dwelling is 
separated from the tower by the railroad spur, two vacant lots and a mature natural vegetative buffer. The 
tower will be painted in a neutral or blending color to reduce any visual obtrusiveness.  
 
11.) Overall benefit to the community 
AT&T has been working with a federal agency to create and deliver FirstNet, a nationwide wireless broadband 
network for first responders. This tower is proposed in order to increase wireless capacity for the downtown 
area and improve indoor coverage to surrounding commercial and residential customers. This tower is 
purported to specifically enhance coverage at the County Courthouse, Baldwin County Corrections, Halliday 
Park, Plasmine Technology, McPherson Oil, the Public Library and Baldwin County Probate Office. The City’s 
services are not through AT&T so would not be directly impacted by the tower at this time. It would directly 



 
benefit the public and any businesses that currently use AT&T, although the tower is designed to host a 
minimum of 2 additional antennas. 
 
12.) Compliance with sound planning principles 
This application meets the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance related to the zoning district and special 
provisions specifically related to Wireless Telecommunications Facilities. The company received approval to 
construct a nearly identical tower in 2014. Neither the conditions of the surrounding area nor the zoning 
ordinance regulations have changed to a degree that would warrant a deviation from the original decision. 
 
13.) Compliance with the terms and conditions of any zoning approval 
There are no current zoning approval conditions.  

14.) Any other matter relating to the health, safety and welfare of the community. 
N/A 
 
Other matters which may be appropriate 
This  Special  Exception  application  is  being  considered  concurrently  with  Site  Plan  Approval.  The  Planning 
Commission has the final decision on the Site Plan approval but acts in an advisory capacity only for the Special 
Exception. Site Plan reviews are completed by the Planning Commission to assure compliance with the Zoning 
Ordinances.  As  reviewed  against  Section  9.4  Telecommunications  Towers  and  Facilities,  the  application 
demonstrated compliance with the applicable zoning regulations. 
 
 

Planning Commission Action 

 
For Special Exception applications, the Planning Commission sends an advisory recommendation to the Board 
of Adjustment, who makes the final decision. The Planning Commission is not required to hold a public hearing 
for a special exception. For Site Plan Approval, the Planning Commission makes the final decision.  In this case, 
the Special Exception decision takes precedence and any Site Plan approval/approval with conditions, will be 
contingent  upon  the  Special  Exception  request  being  granted.  Regardless  of  the  Site  Plan  decision,  a 
recommendation on the Special Exception request is required. 
 
For the Special Exception, the Planning Commission has the option to: 
 

 Make a recommendation to approve the Special Exception to the Board of Adjustment  
 Make a recommendation to approve the Special Exception with conditions to the Board of Adjustment 
 Make a recommendation to deny the Special Exception to the Board of Adjustment, with stated factors 

for the denial. 
 
For the Site Plan Review, the Planning Commission has the option to: 
 

 Approve the Site Plan contingent upon Special Exception approval from the Board of Adjustment  
 Approve the Site Plan with conditions, contingent upon Special Exception approval from the Board of 

Adjustment  
 Deny the Site Plan, with stated factors for the denial. 



Bay Minette

E 1ST ST

NEWPORT PKWY

S HOYLE AV

PO
WE

LL
 AV

BAY ST

TO
WN

SE
ND

 AV

STANMEYER ST

LEIGH ST

NESBIT ST

HAND AV

CLAY ST

WILLIAMS ST

E RAILROAD ST

SOUTH ST

E MAGNOLIA ST

MA
NN

OR
 D

R

BLACKBURN AV

N HOYLE AV

BAY ST

S HOYLE AV

E RAILROAD ST

/

0 0.150.075
Miles

Subject PropertyLegend
Parcels

BAY MINETTE ZONING
RA
R1
R2
R3
R4
R5
B1
B2
B2H
M1
M2
City Limits
County Asphalt
County Gravel/Dirt



E 1ST ST

E 2ND ST

CLAY ST

E 3RD ST

E 5TH ST

N HOYLE AV

E 4TH ST

AB
ER

NA
TH

Y A
V

S HOYLE AV

ELM ST

N WHITE AV

WILLIAMS ST

MO
RA

N 
ST

BLACKBURN AV

TO
WN

SE
ND

 AV

SOUTH ST

PO
WE

LL
 AV

BYRNE ST
SO

WE
LL

 AV

BAY ST

N U S HWY 31

S W
HI

TE
 AV

HAND AVW 1ST ST

STANMEYER ST
LEIGH ST

BRADLEY AV

MIXON AV

W RAILROAD ST
JACOBY CT

MCCONNELL AV

TAYLOR ST

S PINE ST

W 3RD ST

D'OLIVE ST

W MAGNOLIA ST

MA
NN

OR
 D

R

ORANGE AV

COURTHOUSE SQ

THOMLEY AV

E 4TH ST

BAY ST

HAND AV
S PINE ST

BRADLEY AV

I

Future Land Use Map
BC Revenue Parcels
Bay Minette
AGRICULTURE/TIMBER
COMMERCIAL
GOVERNMENT
INDUSTRIAL
INSTITUTIONAL
MANUFACTURED HOME
MIXED USE
PARKS & RECREATION
SINGLE FAMILY
DUPLEX
MULTI-FAMILY
PUBLIC/SEMI-PUBLIC
UNDEVELOPED
UTILITIES
Subject Property
Roads

0 0.095 0.190.0475 Miles



NEWPORT PKWY

MA
NN

OR
 D

R

Parcels
Roads

±

0 100 20050
Feet

Subject Property



Subject Property from Mannor Drive, facing SE 

Mannor Drive at Newport, facing NW  Newport Parkway, facing E 

Property along Newport, facing E from Mannor 



 

From Newport, facing S at railroad intersection Facing Subject Property, looking SW 

Adjacent Residential district, facing SE  Adjacent Residential from Newport/Townsend 






































	June 11, 2020 PC Agenda
	MINUTES Planning Commission March 12, 2020
	AS-2007 Planning Commission Packet
	AS-2007 Staff Report
	AS-2007 Locator Map
	AS-2007 Site MapA
	AS-2007 Site MapB
	SWITZER-BDY
	Sheets and Views
	Model
	layout



	Application
	SWITZER- Certification for Family Administrative Subdivision

	AS-2008 Planning Commission Packet
	AS-2008 Staff Report
	AS-2008 Ballard Family Division Application
	ZV-200469
	AS-2008 Locator Map
	AS-2008 Site Map

	SE-2001 Report with Partial Application for Email
	SE-2001 Newport Cell Tower Staff Report
	SE-2001 Locator Map
	SE-2001 Future Land Use Map
	SE-2001 Site Map
	SE-2001 Site Photos
	SE-2001 Partial Application for Agenda Email
	2891_001
	2892_001
	2893_001
	2894_001
	2895_001
	2896_001



